ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON COWM TTEE
March 13, 2001
1:33 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Cowdery, Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senat or Robi n Tayl or

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Kim El ton

MEVMBERS ABSENT
Al Menbers Present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 59
"An Act relating to awards of federal funds to nunicipalities for
road projects; and providing for an effective date."

MOVED SB 59 OQUT OF COW TTEE

SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 119
"An Act namng the Wlliam R Wod Fairbanks International Airport;
and providing for an effective date.”

MOVED SSSB 119 OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 83
"An Act relating to construction of highways by the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities."

MOVED SB 83 QUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BI LL NO. 100
"An Act relating to the regulation of aeronautics and
conmuni cations and to civil liability relating to aircraft runways,

airfields, and | anding areas."
MOVED CSSB 100( TRA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

SB 59 - See Transportation m nutes dated 2/20/01.

SB 83 - No previous Senate action.

SB 100 - No previous Senate action.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- March 13, 2001



SB 119 - No previous Senate action.
W TNESS REAQ STER

M. Kurt Parkan
Deputy Conm ssi oner
Departnent of Transportation &
Public Facilities
3132 Channel Dr.
Juneau, AK 99801-7898
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 119. (Qpposed to SB 83.

Ms. Mary Jackson

Ai de to Senator Torgerson

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about SB 59.

M. Tom Bri gham
Di vision of Statew de Pl anning
Departnent of Transportation &
Public Facilities
3132 Channel Dr.
Juneau, AK 99801-7898
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about SB 59.

M. Mark O Brien
Chief Contracts O ficer
Departnent of Transportation &
Public Facilities
3132 Channel Dr.
Juneau, AK 99801-7898
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about SB 59.

M . Bob Poe

Al aska Energy Authority

No address avail abl e

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expl ai ned AEA's net hod of using force
accounts.

M. Nick Tucker
Emmonak, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed to SB 83.

M. VWalton Smth

Cty Manager

St. Mary's, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed to SB 83.

M. Roger Smith

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- March 13, 2001



No address provided
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed to SB 83.

Jerry Drake
Bet hel Gty Council
Bet hel , AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Opposed to SB 83.

St eve Weaver

Al aska Native Tribal Consortium

No address provided

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed to SB 83.

Senator Rick Halford

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 100.

Juli Lucky

Staff to Senator Hal ford

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions about CSSB 100( TRA).

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-8, SIDE A
Number 001

CHAI RVAN JOHN COADERY call ed the Senate Transportation Conmittee
neeting to order at 1:33 p.m Present were Senators Tayl or,
Wl ken, Elton and Chairman Cowdery. The first order of business to
conme before the conmttee was SB 119.

#SB 119
SB 119-WLLIAM R WOOD FAI RBANKS | NTL Al RPORT

SENATOR GARY W LKEN, sponsor of SB 119, explained that the purpose
of SB 119 is to acknow edge the Legislature's gratitude to WIliam
R Wod by nami ng the Fairbanks airport after him M. Wod died
about two weeks ago at the age of 94, after over 41 years of
service to Alaska. M. Wod' s acconplishnents were nmany. He was
the president of the University of Alaska from 1960 to 1973, during
a period of expansion. He retired and becane President Eneritus in
1975. He was elected mayor of the Cty of Fairbanks in 1978 and
founded t he Fairbanks | ndustrial Devel opnment Corporation, which is
a nmechanismto pronote the devel opnent of Fairbanks and Interior
Al aska. He was the first chairman of the Fairbanks Area Conmunity
Hospi tal Foundation, the founder and executive director of Festival

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- March 13, 2001



Fai rbanks for 20 years, a creator of and visionary for the Gol den
Heart Plaza, and a columist for the Fairbanks Daily News M ner for
20 years. In 1985, M. Wod was el ected Al askan of the Year. 1In
1985-86, he was Rotary District 5010 Governor, which enconpasses
all of Alaska, the Yukon, and the eastern half of the country
formerly known as Russia. He established the Wod-Nanook Varsity
Tal ent Search and G ant Endowrent at the University. In the year
2000, he was awarded the Service Above Self Award, the Rotary
International's highest award for an individual. He also authored
t hree books of poetry.

SENATOR WLKEN read the follow ng paragraphs from an editori al
dated March 4, 2001 in the Fairbanks Daily News M ner about M.
Wod.

In a 1983 Daily News Mner article, Dr. Wod was quoted
as saying he would want to be renenbered 'as an
i ndi vidual who left the place a little better than he
found it."'

Add to that philosophy his penchant for progressive ideas
and you have a renarkabl e nman of vision. He forwarded so
many i deas that sonetinmes those around him - people one
woul d suppose have had younger and fresher minds - had a
hard tine keeping up.

Predi ctably, such a man could not acconplish so nmuch with
everyone liking every idea. He was criticized for his
support of Project Chariot, a governnent plan born in the
| ate 1950s in search of the " peaceful use of the atom
This idea would have used an atomic blast to create a
port off Alaska's northwest coast. The thought sounds
ludicrous in this newmllennium but inits day it was
an exanple of the vision exercised by progressive
t hi nkers.

Some still exercise their powers of hindsight to
criticize. Qur newspaper says thank God that Dr. Wod
exerci sed his considerabl e powers of forethought to touch
this earth far beyond the scope of immortality.

H s community service mirrored his university career in
many ways. He cane along to build and to keep us | ooki ng
forward. What is even nore remarkable about his
community work is his inestimble hours spent day after
day, year after year, for no reconpense but to satisfy
his want to nmake things 'a little better.'

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- March 13, 2001



For decades to come, Fairbanks will see the mark of Dr.
Wwod, a Mdwest farm boy, the sailor, the scholar, the
husband, the father, +the teacher, the wuniversity
president, the nmayor, the statesman, the grandpa who
chose to make Fairbanks hone.

SENATOR W LKEN noted that at the March 3 funeral service for Dr.
Wod, a letter from Senator Stevens was read that acknow edged Dr.
Wod's contributions. Senator WIlken stated, "A community builds a
new airport every hundred years. Qur good Lord makes a Bill Wod
every hundred years. This is perfectly appropriate for the people
that conme and go fromthe City of Fairbanks to be rem nded on a
daily basis the value of volunteerism the value of vision that was
set forth by Dr. Wod."

MR.  KURT PARKAN, Deputy Comm ssioner of the Departnment of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF), said DOIPF and the
Adm ni stration support SB 119. He pointed out that Dr. Wod was a
very diligent charter nenber of the Airport Conmunity Council in
Fai r banks. DOTPF does not believe this bill will have any fiscal
i npact as signage will be taken care of in DOTPF s existing budget.

SENATOR TAYLOR noved SB 119 from commttee wth individual
recommendati ons and then objected to his notion for the purpose of
di scussi on.

SENATOR TAYLOR sai d he recei ved correspondence this week from about
si x or seven people in the Fairbanks area; two or three support SB
119 and two or three oppose it. He wondered whether any comunity
resolve is forthcom ng, perhaps fromthe Gty of Fairbanks or the
Fai rbanks North Star Borough. He acknow edged that SB 119 has a
|l ong way to go in the process and said he would follow the | ead of
t he Fai rbanks' delegation on this matter.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY noted a [sponsor] substitute to SB 119 was before
the commttee.

SENATOR WLKEN informed the conmttee that next Thursday a
resolution to renane the Fairbanks' airport will be before the
Fai rbanks Northstar Borough Assenbly. He expects the resolution to
recei ve overwhel m ng support but he noted sone concern has been
expressed that the airport should be nanmed after sonmeone fromthe

aviation comunity. He said he appreciates Senator Taylor's
comment but he has not found anyone in the aviation conmmunity who
has given what Bill Wod has given to the community and the state.

He infornmed those who expressed concern about SB 119 that he is
open to suggestions, but whonever they suggest woul d have to have
reached the |l evel of participation that Bill Wod did.

SENATOR TAYLOR npbved SSSB 119 from commttee wth individual
recommendati ons to the next commttee of referral.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- March 13, 2001



CHAI RVAN COADERY announced that hearing no objections, the notion
carried.
#

#SB 59
SB 59- FEDERAL FUNDS TO MUNI CI PALI TI ES FOR ROADS

CHAI RVAN CONDERY announced that SB 59 was heard by the conmmttee at
a previous hearing but was held while the commttee awaited
information on the bill. He asked Mary Jackson to testify on the
nmeasure.

MARY JACKSON, | egislative aide to Senator Torgerson, sponsor of SB
59, said at the last hearing a question was posed about the
indirect cost allocation plan. She submtted information to that
commttee on that question froma simlar project in Honer. I n
addition, she submitted a letter in support of SB 59 from the
Al aska Muni ci pal League. She offered to answer questions.

There being no questions or further testinony, SENATOR TAYLOR noved
SB 59 fromcommttee with individual recomendations.

SENATOR ELTON objected and noted that one concern about SB 59
expressed at the last hearing was that the anmount of noney
available is like a balloon in that if it is squeezed in one area,
it expands el sewhere. He asked what conponent of transportation
dollars this noney will conme from

MR TOM BRI GHAM St atewi de Pl anning Director, DOTPF, explained that
the funds would conme from a part of the program called the
comunity transportation program That program funds state-owned
and | ocal -owned comrunity roads.

SENATOR ELTON asked if that is the conponent DOTPF uses to work
with conmmunities to identify local projects that wll be
transferred to those communities after the state has funded the
proj ects.

MR. BRI GHAM answered that applies to a portion of the program to
projects that were locally owned prior to the inprovenent project
that canme along to the tune of about $50 million in 1999 and $45
mllion in 2000. That conponent al so covers state-owned roads that
are transferred to |l ocal communities for ownership and nai nt enance
once the inprovenent project is done.

SENATOR ELTON asked whether this bill could affect DOTPF s ability
to reduce future expenses on those roads that would ot herw se be
turned over to local communities and reduce DOTPF' s ability to
acconpl i sh road nmai ntenance projects on the |ocally-owned roads.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- March 13, 2001



MR. BRIGHAM said it could have sonme of those effects. The
di scussion at the last hearing on SB 59 was to the point in terns
of which comunities actually have the capability of nanaging a
federal project. Federal funding is not |like a state grant for a
road project, which is nuch sinpler. You only get a proni se of
noney if the project is done correctly. He thought the point at
the last neeting was that it is the large conmunities wth
engi neering capabilities that would tend to be eligible for nost of
t hi s noney.

SENATOR ELTON renoved his objection.

There being no further objections, CHAI RVAN COADERY announced t hat
SB 59 had noved from conmttee.
#

Number 1139
#SB 83
SB 83- CONSTRUCTI ON OF H GHWAYS BY DOTPF

CHAI RVAN CONDERY, sponsor of SB 83, explained that force accounts
are part of the state budget system No limt has ever been pl aced
on the anpbunt that can be spent using a force account. SB 83
limts force account spending, after hearings have taken place and
a finding of fact has been established, to $250,000. He sponsored
this bill because many peopl e have expressed concern that the force
account system m ght be abused and that projects that cost nore
t han $250, 000 should be let for conpetitive bid.

MR. KURT PARKAN, Deputy Conmi ssioner of DOTPF, said DOTPF does not

support SB 83. DOTPF believes that force accounts provide an
opportunity to take care of problens and projects in the state that
are suited for that type of construction. Force account work

anounts to 3 or 4 percent of DOTPF s total program budget: of that
3 or 4 percent, about 50 percent goes to private firnms. DOIPF sees
force accounts as one tool in its tool box. DOTPF prefers to
maintain flexibility to use that mechanismin the future and a cap
of $250,000 will restrict DOTPF s abilities.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY asked M. Parkan how DOTPF would interpret the
word "highways” in the title of the bill

MR. PARKAN said DOTPF would interpret that to apply to projects

that are funded through the Federal H ghway Adm nistration (FHA)
and subject to FHA requirenents.

CHAI RMAN CONDERY asked if a gravel road would fall under SB 83.
MR. PARKAN said in his view gravel roads would fit wthin SB 83.

He noted AS 19.45.001 contains a definition for "highway" that
reads:

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- March 13, 2001



(9) "highway" includes a highway (whether included in
primary or secondary systens), road, street, trail, walk,
bridge, tunnel, drainage structure and other simlar or
rel ated structure or facility, and right-of-way thereof,
and further includes a ferry system whether operated
solely inside the state or to connect with a Canadi an
hi ghway, and any such related facility;

CHAI RMVAN CONDERY said he was aware of the statutory definition but
wanted to nake sure it was understood that the word "hi ghway"
i ncl udes just about everything.

SENATOR WARD asked what cap woul d be appropriate.

MR. PARKAN said that no cap woul d be appropriate.

SENATOR WARD asked if $2 billion would be appropriate.

MR. PARKAN stated that DOTPF prefers the statute as witten.

SENATOR WARD said with no restriction, a project could be estinated
in the billions.

MR PARKAN repeated that DOTPF s history of force account use shows
t he amount has been 3 to 4 percent of DOITPF s total program budget.
DOTPF does not spend a |lot of nobney using force accounts and he
does not anticipate that it wll.

SENATOR WARD asked how much 3 or 4 percent equal s.

MR. PARKAN said DOTPF' s program equals about $400 million so 4
percent woul d anmount to about $16 m i on.

SENATOR WARD asked if DOTPF would |ike the anobunt in SB 83 to be
changed to $16 m |l i on.

MR. PARKAN stated that DOTPF does not want any cap.

SENATOR WARD asked, if the Chairnman wants a nunmber in the bill
whet her $16 million is the nost that DOTPF woul d use.

MR. PARKAN said the l|argest project DOITPF has done using force
accounting has cost about $4 mllion.

SENATOR WARD asked M. Parkan whether $4 mllion or $16 mllion is
acceptable, if a cap is put in.

MR. PARKAN said he is not willing to get into hypotheticals.
SENATOR WARD commented that $4 mllion is the real nunber and $16

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- March 13, 2001



mllion is hypothetical.
Number 1599

SENATOR ELTON asked M. Parkan to review a |list of the
opportunities that force accounting provides to DOTPF.

MR. PARKAN said a couple cone to m nd. In rural Al aska, where
village safe water projects are constructed by the Departnent of
Envi ronnmental Conservation (DEC), a portion of a project nay be
suited for sone federal funding to, for exanple, inprove a
boardwal k or a road. DOTPF woul d give DEC a portion of the noney
to take advantage of conbining the two projects. A second exanple
woul d be when DOTPF uses its own staff to do deferred mai ntenance
work in the summer. Over the last several vyears, DOITPF has
increased its use of federal funds for m nor maintenance projects.

SENATOR ELTON i ndicated that he has seen opportunities using this
kind of an approach to train |local workers so that sone of the
dollars stay in the rural community.

MR. PARKAN agreed that DOTPF is doing sone training wwth a federa
grant, which allows for local hire.

Number 1599

SENATOR ELTON poi nted out that none of the opportunities listed by
DOTPF have a connection to a dollar anount, be they |ocal job
opportunities, job training, or deferred naintenance.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY asked what the low and high limts are for
projects that went out to conpetitive bid in rural Al aska. He
asked whet her DOTPF conpetitively bids $1 mllion projects.

MR. PARKAN replied that projects that cost over $100, 000 generally
go out to conpetitive bid.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY expl ai ned that he introduced this bill because
al nost everyone involved in construction supports sone limt. He
said he understands the St. Mary's project will cost $3.5 million
for 7 or 8 mles of road.

MR. PARKAN said the St. Mary's project cost a little over $3
mllion for 5 mles of road.

CHAl RMAN COWDERY said he was told that noney was spent to hire
people in the community because they had a bad fishing season. He
wondered who will fish this year if everyone is working on the
r oad.

MR. PARKAN stated that fishing jobs are not DOTPF s responsibility

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 9- March 13, 2001



so he cannot answer that question. He does know that there is an
interest in construction jobs by rural Al askans throughout the
state. The St. Mary's project will hire local Al askans; about
$900, 000 of that project will be spent on local hire.

CHAl RVAN CONDERY asked if the road workers will be paid Davis Bacon
wages, as they would if paid by private contractors.

MR. PARKAN replied they will be state enployees and hired as Loca
71 enpl oyees.

CHAI RVAN COADERY said, as a forner contractor who did severa
mllion dollars worth of work in rural Al aska, he always | ooked to
hire | ocal people. However, private contractors are always stuck
wi th paying Davis Bacon wages. He asked if DOIPF does not think
| ocal workers are worth Davis Bacon wages and why those workers
will be made state enpl oyees.

MR. PARKAN said the |ocal workers will be tenporary enpl oyees.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked M. Parkan to address the question about Davis
Bacon wages.

MR PARKAN said they will be hired at the state enpl oyee wage rate,
which is less than the Davis Bacon wage. He noted that nost of
these projects are in rural Alaska and are contracted out and
subj ect to Davis Bacon wages so there are plenty of opportunities
for people to earn Davis Bacon wages. The DOIPF jobs provide an
opportunity for local hire and training. He estinmated about 17
people will be hired for the St. Mary's job. He repeated that
force accounts are just one of many tools used by DOTPF and he does
not believe it is overused.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked what the cost of the project would be if
Davi s Bacon wages are paid for this project.

MR, PARKAN said the cost of all state workers will be approxi mately
$34,000 per week while the cost for contracted workers wll be
about $58, 000.

SENATOR W LKEN commented that he appreciates the need for force
accounting but he has two concerns. He is concerned about the
grow h of force accounting. From 1998 to 2000, not including the
St. Mary's project, DOTPF has increased the use of force accounting
by 50 percent. If this legislation is a reaction to what the
| egi sl ature sees as a dangerous trend, in sone respect SB 83 is a
defense to limting that gromh while recognizing the need for
| ocal participation for a follow up or a small concurrent project.
Second, Fairbanks' contractors conplained to him that the St.
Mary's project was ready to go out to bid when soneone stepped in
and pulled the $3 million off the table. The project is now going

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- March 13, 2001



to be done with state noney and state workers. SB 83 is a reaction
to that type of activity.

SENATOR WLKEN referred to a letter he received from the
Associ ation of GCeneral Contractors (AGC) that speaks to the
econom ¢ upheaval in the communities hardest hit by the crash in
the fishing industry. He said he understands and appreciates that
problem and that the state has thrown hundreds of mllions of
dollars to those communities to help themrecover fromthat crash.
At the sane tinme, DOTPF is going to take noney fromthe Fairbanks
contractors and train people to get their comercial drivers'
|icenses to get through the sumrer. He questioned the logic
because those people will be fishing next summer. He felt that SB
83 is the Legislature's attenpt to say, "No nore St. Mary's." He
poi nted out there was another group of force accounting projects
that all cost around $230,000. He suggested that may be where the
sponsor got the nunber.

SENATOR W LKEN questi oned whether the existing force accounting
systemis in the best interest of Al askans and whether it is fair
to private industry that is battling for these projects and has
every right to expect an opportunity to bid on the projects. He
stated that he supports SB 83 although he does not know what the
cap should be set out. He thought Senator Ward was asking for
DOTPF' s help to get that nunber

MR. PARKAN responded that the total program has grown consi derably
over the |ast several years so the total dollars going to force
accounts wll continue to increase, but the total percent is
hol di ng steady. Another conponent of that growh is that DOTPF has
been spending nore noney on deferred maintenance for highways.
Regar di ng the di scussion about training people to get CDLs, DOTPF
sees that as an opportunity to develop a regionally-based
wor kf orce. Hopefully, those workers will be able to go to another
project. Contractors will be able to hire | ocal people and not pay
novi ng costs. M. Parkan said he appreciates the sponsor's
sensitivity to the St. Mary's project but at this tine, he is in no
position to discuss caps or limts.

SENATOR W LKEN poi nted out that DOTPF has gone directly to federa
agencies on its own and asked whether it can use federal nonies for
preventive mai ntenance and repairs. The state could not do that
before, nowit can. H s contractors feel that force accounting is
okay to patch a few mles of highway but not to rebuild ten mles
of highway. That is the balance that needs to be reached with the
force account issue.

CHAI RVAN COADERY asked how nuch noney will be spent on training.

MR. MARK O BRIEN, Chief Contracts Oficer for DOIPF, told the
commttee that about $20,000 has been expended to date for CDL

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -11- March 13, 2001



training in St. Mary's.

CHAl RMAN CONDERY asked if that will be the total cost for the
t rai ni ng.

MR O BRI EN said that will be strictly for the CDL training, which
is the first phase of the training. Training for other types of
heavy equi pnent will be given.

Nunber 2207

CHAI RVAN COWDERY said he didn't have a problem with DOTPF using
force accounting if it has put a project out and no one bid on it,
but when the private sector is interested, the project should go to
bid. He asked if any DOTPF has put any requests for proposals out
in rural Alaska for projects over $250,000 that have received no
interest fromthe private sector

MR PARKAN sai d DOTPF gets several responses to every offering. He
said, "Alot of people are working out there and yet we still have
capacity for nore jobs, nore projects.”

CHAI RVAN CONDERY said when the St. Mary's project first surfaced,
there was also talk of doing a simlar project in Emonak. He
asked why the Emonak project was dropped.

MR. PARKAN said his understanding is that the Emobnak project was
an airport project and that force accounting would not be suitable
for it.

CHAI RVAN COADERY asked what the value of that project would have
been.

MR. PARKAN said it was under $10 m i on.

SENATOR WLKEN clarified that M. Parkan was correct. According to
DOTPF s budget, force accounting has increased 50 percent from 1998
t hrough 2000 whil e DOTPF s total budget has increased 46 percent.

SENATOR ELTON encouraged commttee nenbers to consider that
training people in a local comunity to do other jobs does not
necessarily displace themfromthe fishing industry. The fishing
i ndustry lasts several weeks at the nost in many of these areas and
a lot of the skills those people learn through this kind of a
process can be used to keep an airport open in the winter. Senator
Elton noted that there is a | ot of enthusiasm about the fortunate
pl acenent of Congressman Young as Chairman of the House
Transportation Commttee and Senator Stevens on the Appropriations
Commttee and the dollars comng to Alaska through the Denali
Comm ssion. He asked M. Parkan how much growth may occur in the
force accounting conponent of DOTPF s budget and whether that is

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -12- March 13, 2001



because it only works for certain projects.
Tape 01-8, Side B

MR PARKAN sai d DOTPF expects to maintain the sane | evel of about 3
to 4 percent in the future as the program grows. DOTPF wi I | be
limted by its own staff constraints.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked if the project specifications would be the
sanme using a force account or a conpetitive bid.

MR. O BRIEN said they would be the sane. DOTPF' s construction
manager wi |l nanage those projects using the sanme requirenents as a
private sector contractor.

CHAI RMAN CONDERY asked if there is an adequate anount of aggregate
in St. Mary's.

MR. O BRI EN said he believes there is.

CHAl RVAN CONDERY asked if the equipnent to be used in St. Mary's is
in place.

MR OBRIENsaidit is; the Gty of St. Mary's is in the process of
acquiring sufficient equipnment to handle this project.

SENATOR TAYLOR said he is torn on this legislation because the
Davi s Bacon | egislation was a policy call orchestrated by speci al
interest groups to nake sure they got paid the highest and best
wages they could for doing state projects. He said,

Now it appears that sonme of those fol ks have given a buy
or a pass to this Admnistration that on sone snaller
projects in sone areas where he wants to seek politica
favor they can go out and they can do other things. |It's
interesting. | don't see or sense any of those things
going on in ny district. Apparently, we're not favored
with wanting to assist l|ocal enploynent in an area
devastated by the loss of the tinber industry but if
sonmebody has a bad fishing run up north, all of a sudden
we thrown out all the laws and we can just change
everything and every one of our friends and special
interest groups will go along wwth us to do this.

| haven't heard a single thing cone out of this
Adm nistration vyet from vyour discussion and |I'd
appreciate it if I"'mwong in nmy interpretation but is
appears to be social engineering with a trenendous
political bent thrown in and all of it trying to be

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -13- March 13, 2001



justified on, well, we're going to get |ocal enploynent
out of this process.

| haven't heard anything vyet that says anything
different. You're still going to spend the sane anount
of nmoney, there's no saving there. You're still going to
build the sanme road, according to exactly the sanme specs,
but we throw out all of these processes of everything
fromDavis Bacon to lowest bid. It remnds ne a great of
what Bill Sheffield attenpted to do wth Lennie
Arsenault. You know, you've got a building for sale or
rent and, what the heck, Lennie, I'll just a deal with
you. | don't have to go through the state procurenent
code and | don't have to abide by any of these rules.
"1l just do it because it's a nice thing for ne to do to
hel p out the plunbers' union in Fairbanks. He al nost got
indicted over that. [|I'mtrying to understand where we
draw the line at any given point. Do you have to have a
bad fish run before this Adm nistration will show up in
your community and help you out? O do you just have to
have a road project and be sonebody that they'd want to
favor?

Maybe |I'm m ssing sonething here, M. Chairman, but |I'm
having a hard tinme understanding it. Comng from snal
comunities, where we get damm little in the way of
capital projects and we have to beg DOT to ever conme down
there and even resurface a road, it kind of surprises ne
that they're falling all over thenselves to hel p sonebody
else up north to nmake sure local folks get hired.
They' ve never once done that with us. They never offered
to come to Wangell and put everybody on the payroll down
there and take care of everybody in town and train them
how to operate things, let the city go buy brand new
equi pnent - because that's what's happening here.
Apparently the city's going to buy the equi pnent based on
this contract. Wat happens when the job's over. Does
the state own that equi pnent or does St. Mary's?

MR. PARKAN answered that St. Mary's owns the equipnent. He
expl ained that, according to statute, projects that are contracted
out are subject to Davis Bacon wages. The cost of the St. Mary's
project was estimated to be 15 percent higher if it was contracted
out. DOTPF has done a force account project in Ketchikan on the
Married Man trail.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY poi nted out the commttee was provided with a book
about DOTPF projects that used force accounts in the past.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -14- March 13, 2001



Nunmber 2148

SENATOR WARD said the Governor did not want to declare the Kenai
area a disaster area when it had a disastrous fishing season, even
though the North Road is falling apart. He asked if there is
anyway to get a force account to get that road fixed.

MR PARKAN said DOTPF is taking care of a lot of the needs in Kenai
with its prograns.

SENATOR WARD said certainly not on the North Road, which has 487
pot hol es as of this norning.

MR. PARKAN pointed out that the state's road needs far exceed
DOTPF' s ability to nmeet those needs.

SENATOR WARD sai d naybe force accounting is part of the problem

SENATOR ELTON comrented that the force accounting procedure that
has been used is not illegal - the statute gives DOTPF a great dea
of latitude in its use. He noted that if force accounting all ows
DOTPF to spend less on a project, that may enable DOIPF to fix
those potholes in Kenai a little bit faster.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY said, wth that thought, we could elimnate
conpetitive bidding and do all projects with state equi pnent.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked, even if force accounting were illegal, where
he woul d find anyone to enforce it in this Adm nistration.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY sai d Senator Elton is correct in saying that DOTPF
has acted legally according to statute, but the purpose of SB 83 is
to put a limt in statute. Sonme people believe that the force
account systemis being abused. He then took public testinony.

Nunber 2020

MR. BOB POE, Executive Director of the Alaska Energy Authority
(AEA), said he wanted to speak to the suggestion to extend the
concept of a cap on force account projects to other parts of the
Executive Branch

MR PCE said three issues are at the heart of force accounting: the
econom ¢ i npact of the project on the community; the overall cost
of the project; and sustainability - how do we nake sure the
community has the ownership and the know edge about the project to
help it reach its economc life. The force account system has been
the nost effective approach AEA has to maxim ze local hire. It
| eaves a |l ot nore of the economic benefit in the community than
just the project. It provides the community nenbers an opportunity
to earn noney and to get skills. It also gives the community a

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -15- March 13, 2001



greater sense of pride and community ownership in the project.

MR. PCE explained that AEA is using a slightly different nodel for
its force accounts. AEA recently awarded six contracts to
construction nmanagers. It is in the process of review ng proposals
for design and construction. The proposals were solicited through
conpetitive bid and contractors will use the private sector to do a
lot of things related to the projects. In the construction
managenent contracts, AEA al so asked that the contractors submt
proposal s for inproving training, perhaps on a regional basis, to
develop skills in those comunities. As an exanple, Houston
Contractors has a very real need to hire rural enployees to work on
the pipeline. They are |losing Native enployees through attrition
or retirenent. Houston is very interested in developing skills
anong rural Al askans and attracting those people to work on the
pi pel i ne. Houston has partnered with the AFL-CIO to devel op
training prograns for electricians, welders, pipe fitters, plunbers
sandbl asters, painters and heavy equipnment operators, using
apprenticeship wages. AEA tries to use force accounts to |eave
benefits in communities and to use the private sector to | everage
AEA's ability to not add a | ot of state enpl oyees. AEA contracts
with each city; those enpl oyees working on a force account actually
work for the city. Using a force account typically does result in
a lower wage scale and reduces transportation and out-of-town
housi ng costs. Using a construction managenent approach has
| owered AEA's costs because of onsite quality control. The
construction nmanagers find a foreman who then works for the city.
The design costs are lower since a conplete bid package is done.
Greater consistency anbng projects occurs because parts and
equi pnent can be standardi zed. He said that AEA woul d argue that
there are real benefits to force accounts and AEA is using a nodel
t hat nakes sense for both the private sector and comrunities.

Number 1813
CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked M. Poe if AEA requires any bondi ng.

MR PCE said he did not know the answer but he is sure that bonding
is required on the constructi on managenent contracts as part of a
normal state contract.

SENATOR WARD asked if AEA has created any state enpl oyees to do any
of the work.

MR. POE said it has not.

MR N CK TUCKER, a resident from Enmonak representing hinself, said
he is opposed to Iimting any funds that will stop rural Al aska
from nmoving into the nainstream of the 21st Century and help
econom ¢ devel opnent and the education that rural children are
getting now. Local hire and training help the young people of

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -16- March 13, 2001



Emmonak. He is concerned that creating tw classes of people,
urban and rural, with only urban citizens being qualified to work,
will be very dangerous. He is a comercial fisherman who was
extrenely hurt by the two fishing disasters. He was a nenber of
t he Raven Conmi ssion under Covernor H ckel. The Emmonak regi on has
one of the | owest per capita inconmes in the state and country. It
has no tinber or major industries, only a very snmall scale fishery.
When that fishery is hurt, people are hurt. The opportunity for
any |evel of training and education is very inportant to the people
in the villages.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY commented that the way that DOTPF is managi ng
force accounts is creating a rural -urban divide because contractors
fromrural Al aska could bid on such a project. The fact that the
urban contractors do not have the opportunity to bid these projects
creates a divide.

MR. TUCKER said he is awed at how creative Alaska Natives are.
They need to have the same opportunities as urban people. He noted
people in the village are very thankful to have year round jobs to
put food on the table.

CHAI RMVAN CONDERY said he did a bank erosion project in Kotlik. He
hired ei ght urban people and about 30 | ocal people for that project
because it was cheaper. He hired the eight urban peopl e because he
needed qualified people to neet certification requirenents.

MR. TUCKER asked the commttee to keep in mnd that putting any
limt on force accounts wll inhibit the growh of rural
communities while the state is working very hard to get people off
of welfare.

MR. WALTON SM TH, city manager of St. Mary's, said in response to
the concern that training local residents will affect the fishing
i ndustry, that there are nore than 600 fish permt holders in that
area and each has a hel per. Less than 5 percent of the fishers
will be put to work on the construction project and St. Mary's does
not expect to have a fish openi ng next sumer anyway.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY poi nted out that was the reason DOTPF gave for
using a force account to do the St. Mary's project.

MR. SM TH stated the Wade Hanpton unorgani zed borough has one of
t he hi ghest unenploynent rates; chronic unenploynent is over 30
percent and with a poor fishing industry, it is worse. The St.
Mary's project has allowed 39 people to get CDL training. CDLs are
required and there is a special federal exenption for Al aska for
off road CDLs. This project has provided a great opportunity to
neet some requirenents that were already in effect. He noted that
regardi ng the comment that these operators will not be paid Davis
Bacon wages, these operators, many of whom are unenpl oyed, wll

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -17- March 13, 2001



work a 60 hour work week with tinme and one-half for overtime, which
will equal between $1400 and $1650 per week. Contrasted with no
i ncome, he does not feel they are being cheated by not earning
Davis Bacon wages. The Cty of St. Mary's has done mllions of
dollars of force account work on water and sewer projects in the
| ast few years, including sonme noney from DOTPF for sonme road work.
That all owed nore pipe to be put in the ground and i nproved public
heal th than woul d have been possi bl e had hi gher wages been pai d.
Using the force account systemallows "nore bang for the buck.”

Regarding welfare reform the new federal law limts the anount of
time a person can stay on welfare. |[If no training and no jobs are
avail abl e, people will go hungry. He is concerned about comrents
that using force accounts is a dangerous trend and that abuses are
occurring; he does not believe anything illegal is going on. One
condition for a best interest finding is the declaration of a
di saster, which occurred in St. Mary's several years ago and
continues in effect right now The Gty of St. Mary's is not
buyi ng brand new equi pnent for this project - it cannot afford to.
He said regarding the argunent that force accounts take sonething
away from soneone el se, Anchorage has had one of its biggest years
ever for contractors wth state highway funds. The Gty of St.
Mary's project represents |less than 3 percent of DOIPF s budget.
He appl auds the Governor and the Comm ssioner of DOTPF because they
have hel ped, with the decision to use force accounting on the St.
Mary's project, econom c devel opnent and diversification, which is
what the residents of St. Mary's need. Passage of SB 83 wll
create two classes of Al askans.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked how many "belly dunps" the Gty of St.
Mary's owns.

MR SMTH said it owns none, and it does not plan to acquire any.
St. Mary's has three 12 yard end dunps, which are not adequate, and
it will be purchasing three used off-road haul ers.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked if St. Mary's has conpactors, water trucks
and asphalt equi pnent.

MR SM TH said that St. Mary's has no asphalt equipnent. It has
conpactors, a grader, three CATS, three end-dunps and two
excavat ors.

CHAI RMAN CONDERY asked if a contractor cane in to do this job and
asked to | ease equipnent from St. Mary's, the city would be in a
position to do that.

MR. SM TH said right now that equipnment is very valuable to St.

Mary's. In the past, contractors have rented equipnent and
returned it in poor condition. St. Mary's is reluctant to | ease
the equipment now but it will be in a better position to nake

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 18- March 13, 2001



equi pnment available to a contractor when its fleet is |arger.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY said when he rented equipnent, there was a
standard for the normal wear and tear.

MR SMTH noted the city has had people rent a truck to haul
equi pnent fromthe airport and al though the truck can carry 6,000
pounds, 22,000 pounds of freight was carried in one trip.

SENATOR WARD asked M. Smith if the Cty of St. Mary's considered
hiring the enpl oyees instead of having them be state enpl oyees.

MR SMTH said it did and advocated for that for over two years but
DOTPF felt that because it would be directly responsible for the
noney and directly responsible to the Federal Hi ghway
Adm nistration (FHA), city hire would not be appropriate. The city
has hired an engineer to provide supervision over qualified
superintendents who will run the job and train workers.

SENATOR WARD asked M. Smth if DOTPF told himthe city could not
hire city enployees and if that was because the cost would be
different.

MR. SM TH said DOTPF felt, because of the FHA objections that the
noney might not be appropriately used, that this nmechani sm woul d
best neet the needs of the Gty of St. Mary's and FHA requirenents.

SENATOR WARD sai d he does not believe that is an FHA requirenent.
He then asked how nmany of the 39 people who have been trained in
St. Mary's are from Anchor age.

MR. SM TH said as far as he knows, none.

SENATOR WARD asked where they are from

MR SMTH said as far wupriver as Russian Mssion and as far
downriver as Kotlik.

Number 749

SENATOR W LKEN asked how much the three 17 yard off road haul ers
are worth.

MR SM TH said by the tine they are delivered to St. Mary's they
wi Il cost under $140,000 each. They are used pieces of equi pnent.

SENATOR W LKEN asked if that is part of the $3 mllion contract.
MR SMTH said it is not. The city is getting a rate that is close

to Blue Book. 1In the last five years, the city has exported gross
sal es of over $500,000 in gravel. The city anticipates additional

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -19- March 13, 2001



contracts and believes the additional work it does on gravel wll
pay for the equipnment in a couple of years.

SENATOR W LKEN asked if the city is using city, not state, funds to
pur chase t he equi pnent.

MR SMTH said that is correct.

SENATOR W LKEN asked if that equipnment will be used as the city
sees fit to nake noney.

MR SMTH said that is correct and it is being viewed as an
econom ¢ devel opnent project as it wll help replace aging
equi pnment. He noted the city has sold over 30,000 tons of crushed
rock in the last three years.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked if the 5 to 8 mles of road that will be
built will be a state road and whether the city's off road vehicles
will be legal to haul on it.

MR SM TH said as far as he knows, there should be no problem H's
only concern has to do with coatings.

CHAl RVAN CONDERY asked if M. Smth thinks the state wll waive the
regul ations to allowthe city's vehicles to use the road regardl ess
of wei ght.

MR. SM TH said the state has done so for private contractors for
years.

CHAI RVAN COADERY poi nted out they haven't had a road.

MR. SM TH expl ai ned that the road has been there since 1993 -this
project will rehabilitate the road.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if the road will be paved.

MR. SM TH said they have had sone di scussi on about high float and
oil emulsion that is known as "a poor man's paving." Once that is
done, track vehicles will not be allowed on the road and they w ||
have to transport with a | ow boy.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked what anount of return the city anticipates
receiving off of this contract for use of the three 17 yard Vol vos
it is purchasing.

MR SMTH said, as with a contractor, it depends on how nmany hours
the equi pnent is down, how many flat tires they have, and how f ast
his mechanic is.

SENATOR TAYLOR said at best it will be 50 percent, at worst naybe

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 20- March 13, 2001



25 percent. Hi s engineer thinks the state has underesti mted the
|l ength of tinme the project will take.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if, when the city went to its banker, it
contenplated a certain anount of return on this equipnent fromthis
j ob.

MR SM TH said his bank anticipates that the city should be able to
net around $150, 000 per year over the next ten years.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if a mmjor portion of the cost of the
equi pnrent will be anortized back to the city off of both grave
sales and this project.

MR SMTH said that is true and that is why it is an economc
devel opnment proj ect. Right now the city has three 12 yard end
dunps but it could carry the same anount with one 17 yard truck in
t he sane anmount of time so it should make the city nore conpetitive
in gravel sales along the Yukon.

Number 428

SENATOR TAYLOR asked what the primary source of enploynent is in
St. Mary's.

MR SMTH said St. Mary's has a single site school district and two
| ocal stores. He assunes about 12 jobs are in the |ocal stores;
t hose jobs pay about $5 or $6 per hour.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked what the popul ation of St. Mary's is.
MR. SM TH sai d about 500 people live in St. Mary's.

SENATOR TAYLCOR said he can synpathize with St. Mary's in its desire
to put nore pipe in the ground and get the road project going as
there isn't a small community in the state that wants to do the
sanme. He expressed concern that the other conmunities are al ways
saddled with Davis Bacon wage requirenments and that smal
comunities are treated differently.

MR SM TH said he believes it is because of the relative poverty in
St. Mary's. The residents of St. Mary's are exceedingly poor and
the area has very limted resources. Sonething needs to be done to
train the | ocal people and make them nore versatile. This project
is truly a community devel opnment project.

SENATOR TAYLOR said he doesn’t get much support from this
Adm nistration for simlar projects. He said he is amazed St.
Mary's is even getting a road repaved.

Nunmber 184

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -21- March 13, 2001



CHAl RVAN CONDERY asked if St. Mary's would still sell the gravel to
the |l ow bidder if the project was done with a conpetitive bid.

MR SMTH clarified that he was speaki ng about gravel sales in the
future, not for this project. He said his understanding is that
the majority of the gravel for this project will come out of pits
that are being opened up by the state.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked where those pits would be | ocated and why the
state woul dn't use the aggregate right there since the city has a
rock crusher.

MR SMTH said a mgjority of the rock, which will anobunt to 150, 000

cubic nmeters, will be "pit-run" material for the base course. It
wll not be crushed so the state will be opening up at |east two
other pits between the city and the airport at a high point so the
trucks will go uphill enpty and downhill [oaded. |If the state used

the city pit, which is close to town, the costs would be
hor r endous.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY asked M. Smth if he believes the state would
open up pits to furnish the aggregate necessary if the private
sector bid the job.

MR. SM TH said the pits the state will open are not owned by the
state - they are owned by Chulista. The state is negotiating for
use of those pits.

CHAI RMAN CONDERY t hanked M. Smth for his testinony and asked M.
Head to testify.

MR. ROGER HEAD, RV Managenent Services, said that nost of the work
his firmdoes is in rural Al aska, the majority being in the Lower
Yukon- Kuskokwi m area. He is very famliar with the unenpl oynent
situation in that area, which is at about 22 percent right now
The unenploynent rate in that area has traditionally been the
hi ghest in the state for the |last ten years.

TAPE 01-9, Side A
MR. HEAD said DOTPF has a nunber of nechanisns that prevent the

overuse of force accounting. The federal governnent has very
stringent policies on its funds. He is concerned that this
| egislation wll create additional restrictions that are

unnecessary and will not be in the public interest.

MR. JERRY DRAKE, from Bethel, representing hinself, said he is a
menber of the city council. The city council passed a resolution
in support of St. Mary's ability to operate a force account. In
hi s opinion, the purpose of SB 83 is to prevent the possibility of

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -22- March 13, 2001



abusing the force account system Every dollar punped out of the
state has checks and balances so that it won't be abused. He
stated that very few communities are able to do a force account
proj ect because they do not have the infrastructure necessary to

support the project. That being the case, force accounts have a
built-in limt already. 1In his view, anytine the state allows a
community to do a force account project, everybody w ns. Every

dollar spent in local wages is spent back in the comunity and
hel ps that econony.

MR. STEVE WEAVER, Al aska Native Tribal Health Consortium said one
of the Consortium s responsibilities is the operation of sanitation
facilities and construction prograns in partnership with the 220
federally recogni zed tribes of Al aska. Most of those projects are
funded through cooperative agreenents with nultiple federal and
state agencies. Sone of those projects include contributions from
DOTPF for inprovenents, such as boardwal ks and access roads. The
| ocal governnments that the Consortiumworks with often select force

accounts as a neans of constructing these facilities. For ce
accounts are an inproved construction option for all of the
Consortiunm s funding agencies. It is one of several options

avail able to |l ocal governnents. The Consortium recomends that
option remain available in the communities' tool boxes.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY announced that no one el se wanted to testify and
that he would like to nove SB 83 to its next commttee of referral.

SENATOR WARD noved SB 83 and its acconpanying fiscal note from
committee with individual recommendati ons.

SENATOR ELTON obj ected and said that he sees no connection at al
in controlling the use of force accounting by putting an arbitrary
cap on those accounts.

A roll call vote was taken. The nmotion to nove SB 83 from
committee carried with Senators Ward, Taylor, WIken, and Cowdery
voting "yea," and Senator Elton voting "nay."

CHAI RMAN CONDERY announced that SB 83 noved to the Senate Fi nance
Commi ttee.

#SB 100
SB 100- REGULATI ON OF AERONAUTI CS

CHAI RVAN COADERY stated that SB 100 was before the conmttee and
that he did not intend to nove the bill today. He asked Senator
Hal f ord, sponsor of SB 100, to present the bill

SENATOR RI CK HALFORD expl ained that the state air commerce |aws are
primarily based on a 1960 act that was carried fromthe 1927 and

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -23- March 13, 2001



1939 acts. Those |laws are out-of-date. A nunber of provisions do
not apply and have been superceded by federal law or they are in
direct conflict with the current state policy so they have not been
enforced. DOTPF did nost of the research on which provisions of
the statutes need to be repealed. DOTPF al so recomrended an
anendnent. Both a House and Senate bill have been introduced on
the survival gear provisions. The existing provisions are not only
out-of-date, they are inpossible to neet if a plane flies to
Canada. He informed commttee nenbers that the House bill is close
to passing and he suggested the contents of SB 100 be added to the
House bi |l |

CHAI RVAN COWDERY repeated his intention not to pass SB 100 from
committee today.

SENATOR ELTON asked for clarification of Sections 3, 4 and 5. He
noted the sponsor statenment states that Section 3 specifies that an
ai rport must be public or if private, open, for a person to be
charged with obstructing the airport or runway. He reads those
sections to renove the provision under which an operator of an
aircraft can be charged with DW

SENATOR HALFORD said that is certainly not his intent.

SENATOR ELTON said he didn't think so. He also asked for
clarification of the definition of "intoxicating liquor" in section
4. He questioned whether, wunder Section 5, a person who is
convicted is punishable by a fine of not nore than $500, which is
considerably less than the DW provisions.

SENATOR TAYLOR noted a conm ttee substitute had been prepared.

SENATOR ELTON acknow edged that those sections were renoved from
the conmmttee substitute.

SENATOR WARD noved to adopt CSSB 100( TRA) as the working docunent
of the coonmttee (Version F). There being no objection, the notion
carried.

SENATOR ELTON cl arified that the provisions he was speaking to are
now i ncluded in Sections 6, 7, and 8 of the conmttee substitute.

CHAl RMVAN CONDERY said, to his understanding, if certain conditions
prevail, a pilot can |and anypl ace.

SENATOR HALFORD asked Juli Lucky to provide the commttee with a
sectional analysis of the commttee substitute.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 24- March 13, 2001



MS. JULI LUCKY, staff to Senator Rick Halford, said in Section 1,
the reference to the Departnment of Commerce and Regional Affairs
(CRA) was changed to the Departnent of Transportation because it
now deals with DOT. Sections 3, 4, and 5 are new sections that
specify when a private airport nust be open for a person to be
charged with obstructing an airport or runway. Section 9 adds a
few survival rations and specifies that |arger planes are exenpt,
which is in statute. Section 10 contains references to statutes
and penalty sections. She pointed out Section 10 speaks to Senat or
Elton's question. Section 11 deals with civil liability. Section
12 contains a technical change, and Section 13 contains the
repeal ers.

M5. LUCKY stated that regarding Sections 6, 7, and 8, which Senator
El ton questioned, those sections were recommended by the Al aska
State Troopers. The DW provision is covered under AS 28.35. The
troopers found that having DW laws in two places was duplicative
and confusing. The troopers requested that the references to AS 28
regarding DW be renoved and changed to controlled substances

which is consistent with the other statutes. She expl ai ned the
part that was in the aviation statutes will be taken care of in the
DW st at ut es.

SENATOR ELTON said his concern is which provisions are applied,
especially on the penalty side. For a violation of the chapter
that is covered under Section 6, he would rather have the penalties
in AS 28.35 applied than the $500 cap.

MS. LUCKY said, to her understandi ng, one reason the troopers want
the DWW renoved fromthis section of the aviation statutes is to
avoi d confusion. Therefore, DW wll not covered in Title 2; the
reference will be noved to AS 28.

SENATOR ELTON offered to follow up with Ms. Lucky and the troopers
on that question before the next neeting.

Nunmber 1038

SENATOR HALFORD said, regarding the questions that relate to
closing a public versus a non-public runway, at the tinme the
original acts were passed, there was a real effort to maintain
every possible runway. Since then, liability questions and private
property questions have arisen. Sections 3, 4, and 5 apply to
those questions. He felt those sections are the nost substantive
in the Dbill; the rest of the bill consists of DOTPF
reconmendat i ons.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked Senator Halford if it would do any damage to

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -25- March 13, 2001



insert "or rotor wng" in Section 5.
SENATOR HALFORD said he didn't think so.

SENATOR TAYLOR pointed out that would cover helicopter |anding
opportunities also. He said he raised the question because federa
agenci es have closed off the entire national forest and w | derness
i n Southeast to helicopter |andings unless the pilot can prove he
or she has landed in that spot in the past.

SENATOR HALFORD did not think SB 100 would preenpt the federa
government from doi ng that.

SENATOR TAYLOR agreed but said SB 100 will inpact state |ands and
private |ands.

SENATOR HALFORD responded, "Well, it's navigable water and public
| ands so it's not the private property and it's subject to public
safety and a basic notice requirenent.”

SENATOR TAYLOR asked Senator Halford to consider the inclusion of
hel i copters as a proposed anmendnent. He referred to Section 11
regarding civil liabilities, and said his primary concern is to
make sure the runways that section applies to are privately owned.
He does not think the bill contains a clear definition of a private
airstrip that wel comes the public and a private landing strip where
ot hers are not wel cone to |and.

SENATOR HALFORD said the two questions regarding the ability to
close and where liability accrues are clearly tort questions, which
is why he asked Senator Taylor if he wanted the Judiciary Commttee
to hear the bill

SENATOR TAYLOR said he thinks the bill is a good draft but he is
concerned that commercial activity is considered to be the
triggering device. One could have a totally private landing strip
that the owner uses for a guiding business, which is conmmercial.
He pointed out that one of the triggers in Section 11 is whether a
fee is charged for landing but it does not address a runway owner
who | eases hangar space.

SENATOR HALFORD said he is counting on Senator Taylor to figure

those answers out. He indicated he is trying to renove the
di sincentive for an individual to naintain or have anything to do
with a runway because of the potential liability. The ot her

problemis that there are airports all over that aren't listed in
the airnen's guide because owners don't want people to know they
are there. Some are on public property adjacent to private

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 26- March 13, 2001



property. No one wants to maintain those runways.

SENATOR TAYLOR said he has asked to have sone research done and
hopes to cone up with sone answers but he does not know that any
| awsui ts have ever been filed in Alaska involving a runway.

SENATOR HALFORD poi nted out that the bill contains a | arge repeal er
section to the old Title 2. The sections in the bill that are
significant are the issues they have been di scussing.

Nunber 1415

CHAI RMAN COWDERY asked why weapons were not included in Section 9.
He asked if that issue has been addressed in the House bill

SENATOR HALFORD said that is addressed in the House bill. The
weapon requi renment was taken out for flights to Canada only. He
pointed out that this is an area where the existing state | aw has

not been enforced for decades. The bill initially, at the request
of DOTPF, repeal ed the whole section but the Departnent of Public
Safety (DPS) wanted to have sonmething in the bill. DPS wanted a

general statenment so that there was sonme requirenent they could go
after but that |ooked like it mght |ead to sel ective enforcenent
and not be a good way to go. He then went back and tried to cone
up with the sinplest and shortest version of a list that was an
update fromthe original list. He didn't include a firearmat that
poi nt . He pointed out that pilots who nmake a living flying
generally carry a lot nore than what is required by the |ist.

CHAI RVAN COADERY repeated that SB 100 will be held in commttee.

MR.  KURT PARKAN, Deputy Comm ssioner of DOTPF, informed the
commttee that Carl Sevey (ph) is an engineer in the statew de
avi ation section of DOTPF. M. Sevey worked with Senator Halford's
staff on SB 100; he is available for questions.

There being no further questions or coments from conmttee
menbers, CHAI RVAN COANDERY said he would wait for the House bill and
work with both bills. He then adjourned the neeting at 3:38 p. m
#

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -27- March 13, 2001



